
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@mijackson.org 

DATE: February 17, 2022 

TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

PLACE: Lenawee Room |Human Services Bldg. 
 1040 S. Winter Street 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the December 16, 2021, Meeting [ACTION]  ..........................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #22-01 — Ridgeway Township rezoning [ACTION]  ........................................................  7 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) — None 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 
b. New Business — Election of 2021 LCPC officers [ACTION] 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

Please note that the meeting will take place in person. 
The location is the Lenawee Room of the Human Services Building (1040 S. Winter Street). 

 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for March 17, 2022 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #1 

mailto:gbauman@mijackson.org


This page is intentionally blank. 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #2 



  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, December 16, 2021 

Lenawee Room ● Lenawee County Human Services Building ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee County Commission; Ms. Carrie Dillon, Educa-
tion Representative; Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair; Mr. Bruce Nickel; and Mr. 
Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC Secretary; and Mr. Ralph Tillotson, Lenawee County 
Commission 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary 

Item 1 Call to order. Chair Liedel called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. Those in attendance 
joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2 Public comment. None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 12/16/2021 meeting agenda for approval. 

Comm. Dillon made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to approve the December 16, 2021, 
meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 11/18/2021 meeting minutes for approval. 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to approve the November 18, 2021, 
meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) #21-16 | Rollin Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of prop-
erties (#RL0-685-0441-00, #RL0-685-0450-00, and #RL0-685-0442-00) to the ‘Single-
Family Residential (R-1) district. Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners 
to recommend approval with comments of the proposed rezoning, noting that the 
remnant of C-1 zoning located on the south side of Elm Street should also be rezoned 
at some point in the near future (see the staff report). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the proposed rezoning of the 
subject properties (#RL0-685-0441-00, #RL0-685-0450-00, and #RL0-685-0442-00) to 
the ‘Single-Family Residential (R-1)’ district to the Rollin Township Board, noting that 
the remnant of C-1 zoning located on the south side of Elm Street should also be re-
zoned at some point in the near future (see the staff report). The motion passed 
unanimously. 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
December 16, 2021, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

(2) #21-17 | Woodstock Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a 
property (#WD0-136-4920-00) to the ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ district. 
Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend disapproval of 
the proposed rezoning, noting that it conflicts with the Township’s future land use 
map (see the staff report). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend disapproval of the proposed rezoning of the subject prop-
erty (#WD0-136-4920-00) to the ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ district to the 
Woodstock Township Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #21-18 | Woodstock Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a 

property (#WD0-107-4850-00) to the ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ district. 
Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval of the 
proposed rezoning, noting that it conforms to the Township’s future land use map 
(see the staff report). It was also noted that conditions cannot be placed on a straight 
rezoning request. 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Dillon, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the subject prop-
erty (#WD0-107-4850-00) to the ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ district to the 
Woodstock Township Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s). None. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s). 

(1) #21-02 | City of Adrian. Commissioners reviewed the proposed City of Adrian 2021 

Comprehensive Plan per Section 41(3) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised the Commission to state that, in its opinion, the 
future land use map contained in the City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan is (see 
the staff report): 

 generally consistent with the Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and 

 generally compliments the master plans of adjacent municipalities in Lenawee 
County. 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to concur with the staff 
advisement that the City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan is generally consistent 
with the Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and generally compliments 
the master plans of adjacent municipalities in Lenawee County (see the staff report). 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #21-03 | Rollin Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed 2021 edition of 

the Rollin Township Master Plan per Section 41(3) of the Michigan Planning Enabling 
Act. Staff summarized his memo and advised the Commission to state that, in its 
opinion, the future land use map contained in the proposed edition of the Rollin 
Township Master Plan is (see the staff report): 

 generally consistent with the Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and 

 generally compliments the master plans of adjacent municipalities in Lenawee 
County. 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #4 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
December 16, 2021, Meeting Minutes Page 3  
 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Dillon, to concur with the staff 
advisement that the Rollin Township Master Plan is generally consistent with the 
Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and generally compliments the mas-
ter plans of adjacent municipalities in Lenawee County (see the staff report). The 
motion passed unanimously. 

Item 6 Other Business. 

a. Old Business. None. 

b. New Business. None. 

Item 7 Public Comment. None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment. Comm. Nickel reminded everyone that meetings will begin at 
6:00 pm starting in January. Moving the meeting location back to the Old County Courthouse 
was also discussed. Staff was directed to look into that possibility. Comm. Bolton announced 
that County Administrator Marty Marshall will retire in April. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 7:30 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, LCPC Recording Secretary 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #5 



This page is intentionally blank. 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #6 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #22-01 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: February 8, 2021 

 Proposal: The rezoning of property in Ridgeway Township 

Request 

The subject property is proposed for rezoning to a ‘Light Industrial (LI)’ district, from an ‘Agricultural 1 
(AA-1)’ district. 

Purpose 

The Rezoning Worksheet Form states that the purpose of the proposed change is for “agriculture supply, 
fertilizer warehouse, custom application, agronomy ― possible future fertilizer blending”.1 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (RD0-203-3900-00) is located in Section 3 (T6S-R5E) of Ridgeway Township, on the 
south side of M-50 (i.e., Chicago Boulevard/Monroe Road) (see Figure 1). Centennial Road borders the 
property to the south and the Coats Drain flows through it. The Village of Britton abuts the parcel to the 
north and the west. The subject parcel has an area of approximately 52.84 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

 Current Land Use – The parcel is a vacant manufactured housing park with an internal street 

system (see Figures 2 and 3). Commercial development is located to the north, on the south side 
of M-50; industrial development is located on the north side of the highway. Agricultural uses 
are located to the east and the south, with some dwellings. To the west, residential develop-
ment occurs north of Coats Drain and agricultural development occurs south of the drain. 

 Future Land Use – Ridgeway Township does not have a future land use map. However, the Vil-

lage of Britton recommends general commercial on its properties on the south side of M-50 and 
manufacturing on the north side of the highway. 

 Current Zoning – The subject parcel is currently zoned ‘Agricultural 1 (AA-1)’. Village of Britton 

properties on the south side of M-50 are zoned ‘General Business (B-2)’. Village properties on 
the north side of the highway are zoned ‘Manufacturing (M)’. Township properties to the east 
and south are zoned ‘AA-1’. Village properties to the west are zoned ‘Two-Family Residential 
(RA-2)’ north of Coats Drain and ‘Single-Family Residential (RA-1)’ south of the drain. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #7 



Page 2 CZ #22-01 
 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

 Public Road/Street Access – The subject property is adjacent to M-50 (i.e., Chicago Boule-

vard/ Monroe Road), a state highway. Centennial Road, a county local roadway, also abuts the 
property to the south. 

 Public Water and Sewer – Municipal sewer and water services are not available according 

to the Township (see the background information). There is an opportunity to hook up to Village 
water, but three wells are located on the property. 

 Environmental Constraints – The Township is unaware of any environmental constraints 

(see the background information). However, LCPC staff notes that the Coats Drain flows through 
the property. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Ridgeway Township Planning Com-

mission recommends approval of the rezoning (see the background information). 

LCPC Staff Analysis and Advisement – The subject property is a vacant mobile home park in 

need of redevelopment. Existing commercial and industrial land 
uses/zoning abut the property to the north along M-50. Based 
upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning 
Commission to recommend APPROVAL of the proposed rezoning 
to ‘Light Industrial (LI)’ to the Ridgeway Township Board. There are 
also several properties on the south side of M-50 within the Town-
ship that will remain an island of ‘AA-1’ zoning; they should be re-
zoned at some point in the near future. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Ridgeway Township and LCPC staff. 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #8 



Page 3 CZ #22-01 
 

Figure 2 
Property Assessment 

 

Figure 3 
Aerial Photograph 

 

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #9 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #10 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #11 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #12 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #13 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #14 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #15 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #16 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #17 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #18 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #19 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #20 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #21 



Norfo
lk S

outhern 
Railway

Stream

Main

Chicago

Centennial

Kniffen

Maple

Elm

Oak

9th

College

Rose

10th

South

Osborne
Ch

urc
h

Sm
ith

Wells

Britton

Cheever

Monroe

Ex
elb

y

Gripton

Ra
ilro

ad

Britto
n Village of Britton

Future Land
Use Map

Legend

²
0 0.250.125

Miles

""50

""50

Institution
Park

Water and
sewer service
must be
extended before
this area is
developed.

Water and
sewer service
must be
extended before
this area is
developed.

Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Downtown Commercial
General Commercial
Manufacturing

Agricultural

02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #22 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #23 



02/17/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #24 




